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JANUARY 2012 
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09 City Council, 7:00 p.m., Council Chamber  

 09 Tax Abatement Review Committee, 5:30 p.m., Admin Conference Room  

 10 Tax Increment Finance Authority, 4:00 p.m., Admin Conference Room

 12 Zoning Board of Appeals, 7:00 p.m., Council Chamber   

 23 City Council, 7:00 p.m., Council Chamber  

 24 Library Board, 4:30 p.m., Library Conference Room   

 24 Public Safety Advisory Committee, 6:00 p.m., Public Safety Building  

 25  Beautification Advisory Commission, 6:00 p.m.

 31 Planning Commission, 7:00, Council Chamber   

 

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                AUBURN HILLS MEETING SCHEDULE 

248-370-9402 



The City of Auburn Hills 
Regular City Council Meeting 

Monday, January 9, 2012 * 7:00 p.m. 

 

AGENDA 

           
 

 
 
         

Council Chamber    1827 N. Squirrel Road    Auburn Hills MI 
248-370-9402  www.auburnhills.org 

 

 

1. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER   

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

3. ROLL CALL OF COUNCIL  

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – December 19, 2011 

5. APPOINTMENTS & PRESENTATION  

6. PUBLIC COMMENT 

7. CONSENT AGENDA 

All items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion 
of these items unless a Council member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered 
in its normal sequence on the agenda. 

7a. Board and Commission Minutes 

 7a.1. Tax Abatement Review Committee – December 12, 2011 

7b. Motion – Approve Performance Resolution MDOT 

8. OLD BUSINESS   

9. NEW BUSINESS  

9a.  Public Hearing/Motion – Approve Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate- TD Joslyn Road LLC 
(LaSorda Group) 

9b. Public Hearing/Motion – Approve Industrial Facility Exemption Certificate- Dynamic Corp. 

9c. Motion – Award bid for HURCOVAC250D Valve & Vac Maintenance System  

10.  COMMENTS AND MOTIONS FROM COUNCIL 

11.  CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

12.  CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

13.  ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council meeting minutes are on file in the City Clerk’s office. NOTE:  Anyone planning to attend the meeting who has 
need of special assistance under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) is asked to contact the City Clerk's Office at 370-9402 or the City 

Manager's Office at 370-9440 48 hours prior to the meeting.  Staff will be pleased to make the necessary arrangements.   

http://www.auburn-hills.org/
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December 19, 2011 
CALL TO ORDER: by Mayor McDonald at 7:00 p.m. 

LOCATION:  City Council Chamber, 1827 N. Squirrel Road, Auburn Hills, MI 48326 

         Present: Mayor McDonald, Mayor Pro Tem Hammond, Council Members Doyle, Kittle, Knight, 
McDaniel, Verbeke 

          Absent: None 

 Also Present:  City Manager Auger, Assistant City Manager Tanghe, Police Chief Olko, DPS Director 
Melchert, Community Development Director Cohen, Water Resources Coordinator 
Keenan, Finance Director Barnes, City Attorney Beckerleg, City Engineer Juidici, TIFA 
Chair Bennett, TIFA Member Ardelean, Planning Commissioner Mitchell  

   12 Guests   

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

4a. Regular City Council Meeting – December 5, 2011 
Moved by Ms. Doyle; Seconded by Ms. Verbeke. 

 RESOLVED: To approve the December 5, 2011 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes. 
VOTE: Yes: Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDaniel, McDonald, Verbeke 
   No: None         Motion carried (7-0) 
RESOLUTION NO. 11.12.230 

4b. Executive Session – December 5, 2011 
4c. Executive Session – November 14, 2011 
4d. Executive Session – October 3, 2011 

Moved by Mr. Kittle; Seconded by Mr. McDaniel. 
RESOLVED: To approve the December 5, 2011, November 14, 2011, and October 3, 2011 Executive 
Session Council Meeting Minutes. 

VOTE: Yes: Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDaniel, McDonald, Verbeke 
   No: None         Motion carried (7-0) 
RESOLUTION NO. 11.12.231 

5. APPOINTMENTS & PRESENTATIONS  

5a. Motion – Approve City Council Board and Commission Appointments.  
(The following minutes are presented in a verbatim format as requested by the Council.) 

Mr. McDaniel:  “Mayor McDonald, is it still your intent to request that I be appointed to the Planning Commission? 

Mayor McDonald:  “Yes”. 

Well, I‟m sure this comes to no surprise to you since we have had several conversations regarding your desire to 
have me serve on the Planning Commission.  Again, as I have verbally stated in four different face-to-face 
conversations, as well as provided to you in writing, I am unable to serve on that committee due to my prior 
family obligations and commitments.  Because of these reasons, I do not have the availability to be a participant 
and cannot attend the meetings.  For whatever personal reason you still wish to appoint me to the Planning 
Commission and this intent I feel is not being done in the best interest of the City, its residents or this Council.  
So with that, I must respectfully decline your offer and the appointment to the Planning Commission. 

The City of Auburn Hills 

City Council Meeting 

Minutes 

C I T Y  O F  A U B U R N  H I L L S  

C I T Y  C O U N C I L  A G E N D A  
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Again, I will reiterate, I am more than willing to serve on a different committee, which does not conflict with my 
prior family obligations and commitments”.  

Mayor McDonald:  “Like you say, Mr. McDaniel, we talked three or four times on this.  The first time we talked 
you said you could not be on the Planning Commission because it‟s on Tuesdays and that particular night your 
young daughter, you‟re going to give her gymnastics lessons and so I told you at that time that if you desired you 
could leave the meeting early for a family obligation or come to a meeting late, I said you could do that.  Then 
you told me that you‟re going to be playing basketball one night.  So once again I made an effort to help you out 
there.  I said that maybe it was possible to have a Council member serve for the three or four months while that 
basketball season is taking place and then you could go on the Planning Commission.  After that you tell me that 
Tuesday nights are out completely, so I once again told you it used to be on Thursdays and I would talk with the 
staff and the Chair of the Planning Commission to see if that could possibly be changed back to Thursdays, 
which it can be, I notified you of that.  You then tell me that Thursdays are out, so then you tell me that basically 
you can‟t serve on that committee because of family obligations.  So, Mr. McDaniel, my question to you is, you 
just got reelected, you know the various boards that this board has to serve on, and you know what my 
philosophy is, I want all the Council members to serve on all these boards so they have a strong feel of how this 
City operates.  So if you would please tell me, knowing that, why you are refusing this. These family problems 
are issues of basketball could not have just come up”.   

Mr. McDaniel:  “Mr. Mayor those issues are not the inclusive issues as I have discussed with you.  Again, we 
didn‟t get anywhere with our several face-to-face conversations.  I don‟t see the need or the benefit to discussing 
this in this forum, I don‟t see us getting anywhere else.  So again I respectively decline the appointment of the 
Planning Commission”.   

Mayor McDonald:  “Okay, let me ask you one more question, prior to the election, the mayor and mayor pro tem, 
you actively sought the mayor pro tem‟s job and talked to me personally before that meeting to try and get my 
support for that.  Knowing the mayor pro tem‟s job takes up more than one day per month like the Planning 
Commission may do, why would you even entertain that thought?”   

Mr. McDaniel:  “Mr. Mayor, again, I‟ve discussed all of this with you it‟s not getting anywhere.  I think for the sake 
of not wasting everybody‟s time, I again, respectively decline the appointment to the Planning Commission”. 

Mayor McDonald:  “I guess, in my 23 years here on Council, you are the first Council person that has ever 
refused any position on this board.  It‟s very frustrating, especially, shall I say, just get re-elected and knowing 
how this board operates to come up with these excuses or whatever they may be.  What‟s to stop the rest of this 
board, for whatever reason, to say „I can‟t serve on this board because of an obligation I have‟.  Sooner or later 
all these boards would be absent a council member”. 

Mr. McDaniel:  “Well, as you know Mayor, there isn‟t actually any where a council member shall serve on an 
additional board.  However, as I stated before, my family obligations are priority to me and for that reason again, 
I decline the appointment and the offer to serve on the planning commission.  It is not that I do not want to, it is 
not that I have a desire or want to serve the committee or any other or committee, it is simply because as I have 
stated I have prior family obligations, which are my prior family obligations that prevent me from attending those 
meetings.  I do not feel it is in the best interest of the City to place my name on a roster of a committee on which I 
am not able to attend”.   

Mr. Kittle: “Mr. Mayor?” 

Mayor McDonald:  “Mr. Kittle?” 

Mr. Kittle:  “May I interject?  Relative to the first council member that ever had a , If it would serve the council at 
all I would be willing to carry over onto the Planning Commission until such a time that‟s deemed appropriate and 
I‟d also be willing to accept the Tax Abatement Review committee.  I could run those in parallel if need be to help 
resolve the conflict”.   

Mayor McDonald: “Well, and you know Mr. Kittle, I did talk to you on this.  Two years ago I reappointed you to 
the planning Commission, because at that time Mr. McDaniel  says could I please put him on a another 
committee that didn‟t meet as regular as the Planning Commission, because he had a young daughter”.  

Mr. McDaniel:  “That‟s not true”. 

Mayor McDonald: “So I reappointed to you to that”. 

Mr. McDaniel: “My daughter wasn‟t even born two years ago, Mr. Mayor so…” 

Mayor McDonald: “Well, next coming up. So I told you I did not want to reappoint you to a third time straight on 
the Planning Commission”.     

Ms. Doyle: “Mr. Mayor?” 
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Mayor McDonald: “Ms. Doyle?” 

Ms. Doyle: “This is really unfortunate, you know we all feel bad about this, and I hate to see a situation happen 
like this.  I‟d just like to comment that I really understand why you feel Mr. McDaniel, who‟s the only Council 
Member who has not served on the Planning Commission yet, should have that experience.  I can also 
understand Mr. McDaniel who‟s working full time and has very young children, a second baby just born, there 
may be some extra pressures of how much he‟s at home, I don‟t know, I can understand that.  I would hope we 
can reach some kind of compromise here.  And really, I wondered Mr. McDaniel, if you would consider basically 
making a commitment to serve on that Planning Commission, let‟s say in one year?  Perhaps Mr. Kittle or 
somebody else the Mayor thinks should serve to give you a little breathing room there, but from your part, would 
you be willing to say okay, I appreciate that, give me a little breathing room, sort of get things going, in a year I‟ll 
step up and get that important experience?”     

Mr. McDaniel:  “Ms. Doyle, I do appreciate the comments that you‟ve made. As I said, I discussed face to face 
with Mr. McDonald the issues that are apparent with my family obligations do not totally consist of taking my 
daughter to gymnastics‟ lessons and am committed to that. They go deeper than that. I have expressed that to 
the Mayor. I cannot tell you what will happen in a year, I cannot tell you what will happen in 2 years.  I am not in  
a position right now to make that commitment when I don‟t know the status of my family. By all means, I would 
love to serve on that committee; I think it is a very important committee.  I think it‟s a, would be a great 
experience to get on that committee. I am well aware, I have spoken with several members on that Board as to 
how much work they are actually doing for the City. When I commit to something, I‟d like to make sure that I am 
doing a good job. I would like to make sure that I can commit the time. If I can‟t attend those meeting, I can‟t do 
that. That is the only thing I can say.  I don‟t know why, you know, I don‟t see us appointing another member of 
the city, another resident and telling them that you shall serve on this committee. It just doesn‟t happen. I would 
love to serve on this committee, and if it works out I will do that. But right now I have prior obligations that have 
been well prior to this election that the Mayor is aware of that keeps me from attending those meetings. Again, it 
is not that I do not want to, it is that I simply cannot. If I could make it work, I would, but I cannot make it work. I 
must respectfully decline the appointment to this committee”. 

Mr. Knight:  “Mr. Mayor”. 

Mayor McDonald:  “Mr. Knight”. 

Mr. Knight:  “Would you consider a motion to approve all but the planning commission at this time, leaving that 
open and with the understanding that until a new appointment is made the current appointment continues? I 
believe that is Mr. Kittle, is it not, on the Planning Commission?” 

Mayor McDonald:  “Yes.” 

Mr. McDaniel:  “If I could add something to that, Mr. Knight, I have expressed this on numerous occasions and I 
have also spoken to Mr. Kittle, the last conversation that I left the Mayor with, he said that he would reach out to 
the other Council members and see if one of them would be willing to switch. I was definitely open to serving on 
another committee that met on a different night that would be suitable for me to be able to make the meetings.  
Mr. Kittle generously offered, and I appreciate that, Mr. Kittle, offered to switch committees, and I would remain 
on the Tax Abatement Review Committee and serve that and continue to serve that very important committee 
however that offer is still out there on the table and I am open to that. I am also open to serving on a different 
committee that meets at a different time. You know, when you are working full time and are the sole provider and 
you work and your wife stays home with the two kids, I have to commit to the obligations I have.  And that is 
where I would like to leave it.” 

Mr. Knight:  “I asked the Chair if the Chair was willing to accept a motion without the appointment to the Planning 
Commission with the understanding that until you appoint a new person the old person continues, by by-law. I 
am asking if he would accept that motion or if” … (unable to decipher – 2 persons speaking). 

Mayor McDonald:  “Mr. McDaniel, Tuesday nights are out, Thursday nights are out, what about Wednesdays?” 

Mr. McDaniel:  “Mr. Mayor.  I have already expressed to you my concerns to you and again, I decline my 
appointment to the Planning Commission”.  

Mayor McDonald:  “I didn‟t say that. I said if Tuesday nights are out, and Thursday nights are out, are 
Wednesday nights available?” 

Mr. McDaniel:  “Mr. Mayor. Again, I decline the appointment to the Planning Commission.” 

Mayor McDonald: “I am not putting you on the Planning Commission. I am saying, Tuesday nights are out, 
Thursday nights are out, are Wednesday nights in?” 
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Mr. McDaniel:  “I am going to have to check with my boss at home, my wife, so I can let you know and get back 
to you.” 

Mayor McDonald:  “Truly, I don‟t understand why you ran for re-election. You were elected to serve the people, 
and one of those functions and obligations is to serve on a City board. Not necessarily at your pleasure or 
whatever it may be.” 

Mr. McDaniel:  “It‟s not an obligation, for one, to serve…” 

Mayor McDonald: “Well, then you don‟t take this seriously.” 

Mr. McDaniel: “I do take this very seriously and I was elected to a four year term and I plan to serve the residents 
for the next four years, and I have done a very good job in the last, previous four years, because that is why I am 
here for the next four. I don‟t know why it‟s, to me, for some personal reason you feel the need to…” 

Mayor McDonald:  “To serve the Board.” 

Mr. McDaniel:  “And I have no objections to serve a Board.  I told you I would be willing to switch Boards with Mr. 
Kittle, and he‟s offered, and all of Council can be represented.” 

Mayor McDonald: “I am well aware that you have served on that board for the last two years, and my philosophy 
is to get these Council members on various boards and not remain on the same one so they are well versed in 
how the City operates.” 

Mr. McDaniel:  “Mr. Kittle, have you served on the Tax Abatement Review committee before?” 

Mr. Kittle:  “Yes, I have.” 

Mr. McDaniel: “Okay”.  

Mayor McDonald: “If you are on the Council long enough you are going to serve on all of them. Let me ask you a 
question. Have you served on the Planning Commission?” 

Mr. McDaniel: “No. Mr. Mayor, I have already expressed all this to you in a face to face conversation. I really 
don‟t know the point in going around and around and wasting everyone‟s time”. 

Mayor McDonald: “Then, I guess you need to check with your boss on Wednesdays because I do have a 
committee.” 

Mr. McDaniel:  “If you would like to speak with me about that committee and find out at that time well then we can 
go with that.” 

Mayor McDonald: “I just want to know if you are available. Do you mean you want to pick and choose what 
committee you are on? “ 

Mr. McDaniel:  “Yes, I am going to say yes or no to a committee based on when it meets, how much time is 
involved in it, and how it fits with my prior family obligations. That is what I am telling you.” 

Mayor McDonald: “So in other words, the election of a City Council person is not a high priority for you to serve in 
this…” 

Mr. McDaniel:  “I did not say that, Mr. Mayor, please tell me where it says that you shall appoint a Council 
Member to a committee and that you shall do it. You are not anyone of our bosses. We confirm the 
appointments. 

Mayor McDonald: “I appoint, the Council confirms.” 

Mr. McDaniel: “This is pretty interesting.” 

Ms. Verbeke:  “Mr. Mayor, I believe Mr. Knight asked a question that hasn‟t had a response.” 

Mayor McDonald:  “I will not do that. I will not put Mr. Kittle back on the Planning Commission.  Ms. Verbeke, 
would you like to serve on the Planning Commission? 

Ms. Verbeke:  “On a temporary basis?” 

Mayor McDonald:  “Until we get a replacement. Would you like to serve that out?” 

Ms. Verbeke:  “I would serve.” 

Mayor McDonald: “Great, then I will put you on and put Mr. McDaniel in your spot”. 

Mr. McDaniel:  “That is absolutely fine with me, Mrs. Verbeke, I appreciate it, and you do not have to do it. If your 
schedule permits you to do it, I know you have 5 small children, so…” 

Ms. Verbeke:  “You are welcome.” 

Mr. Knight:   “Are you ready for a motion?” 

Mayor McDonald:  “Yes.” 
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Mr. Knight:  “I move to confirm the appointment of City Council members Anne Doyle to the Public Safety 
Advisory Committee, Maureen Hammond to the Zoning Board of Appeals and Retiree Health Care & Pension 
Board;  Bob Kittle to the Tax Abatement Review Committee; Henry Knight to the Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority and the Economic Development Authority; Kevin McDaniel to the Beautification Advisory Commission; 
Cheryl Verbeke to the Planning Commission, Jim McDonald to the Retiree Health Care & Pension Board. 

Supported by Ms. Verbeke. 

Mr. Kittle:  “Comment. I really hope it wasn‟t something I said at the Planning Commission.” 

Ms. Verbeke:  “As a member of the Planning Commission for 13 years we really enjoyed having Mr. Kittle as a 
commissioner.  Thank you for all your time there.” 

Mayor McDonald:  “We are ready to vote.” 

Motion carried unanimously. 

(NOTE:  End of verbatim minutes.) 

Moved by Mr. Knight; Seconded by Ms. Verbeke. 
RESOLVED: To  confirm  the  appointment  of  City  Council  Members  Anne  Doyle  to  the  Public  
Safety Advisory Committee; Maureen Hammond to the Zoning Board of Appeals and Retiree Health 
Care & Pension Board; Bob Kittle to the Tax Abatement Review Committee; Henry Knight to the 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority and the Economic Development Authority; Kevin McDaniel to 
the Beautification Advisory Commission; Cheryl Verbeke to the Planning Commission; Jim 
McDonald to the Retiree Health Care & Pension Board. 

VOTE: Yes: Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDaniel, McDonald, Verbeke 
   No: None         Motion carried (7-0) 
RESOLUTION NO. 11.12.232 

5b. Motion – Confirm Reappointment of Jack Brocklebank to the Election Commission. 
Moved by Mr. Knight; Seconded by Ms. Hammond. 

RESOLVED: To confirm the reappointment of Jack Brocklebank to the Election Commission for a 
term ending December 31, 2015. 

VOTE: Yes: Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDaniel, McDonald, Verbeke 
   No: None         Motion carried (7-0) 
RESOLUTION NO. 11.12.233 

5c. Motion – Confirm Reappointment of Terry Carpenter to the Election Commission. 
Moved by Ms. Hammond; Seconded by Mr. Kittle. 

RESOLVED: To confirm the reappointment of Terry Carpenter to the Election Commission for a term 
ending December 31, 2015. 

VOTE: Yes: Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDaniel, McDonald, Verbeke 
   No: None         Motion carried (7-0) 
RESOLUTION NO. 11.12.234 

5d. Motion – Confirm Reappointment of Chester McFadden to Public Safety Advisory Committee.  
Moved by Mr. Kittle; Seconded by Ms. Doyle. 

RESOLVED: To confirm the reappointment of Chester McFadden to Public Safety Advisory Committee 
for a term ending December 31, 2013. 

VOTE: Yes:   Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDaniel, McDonald, Verbeke 
   No: None         Motion carried (7-0) 
RESOLUTION NO. 11.12.235 

5e. Motion – Confirm Reappointment of Jay Boelter to Public Safety Advisory Committee. 
Moved by Mr. Kittle; Seconded by Mr. McDaniel. 

RESOLVED: To confirm the reappointment of Jay Boelter to Public Safety Advisory Committee for a 
term ending December 31, 2013. 

VOTE: Yes: Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDaniel, McDonald, Verbeke 
   No: None         Motion carried (7-0) 
RESOLUTION NO. 11.12.236 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT 
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David Lonier, 1842 Commonwealth, expressed his concern with the SMART meters regarding health, safety and 
privacy issues.  He is also concerned with the numerous cell towers and antennas, causing radiation effects on 
the environment.  He requested Council pass a resolution to prohibit these meters from being installed and that 
the residents decide if they want the installation of meters.  

Pauline Holton, a Shelby Township resident, distributed information regarding the effects of the SMART meters 
and requested the City join other communities on the moratorium of these meters. 

John Holton, a Shelby Township resident, explained seven communities have currently signed a resolution for a 
moratorium for the meters.  He doesn‟t approve of DTE forcing the SMART meters on residents. 

City Attorney Beckerleg stated the City Council doesn‟t have the authority to prevent SMART meters from being 
installed. 

Glenna Long, Anita Christian, Sue Krause, Jim Jacarski, Ron Keller and a Squirrel Road resident all agreed that 
SMART meters are dangerous and should not be required, and requested  Council to sign a resolution for a 
moratorium on the meters. 

7. CONSENT AGENDA 

It was requested that Items 7c., 7g. and 7h. be removed from the Consent Agenda. 

7a. Board and Commission Minutes 
 7a.1. Tax Abatement Review Committee – October 10, 2011 
  7a.2. Planning Commission – October 25, 2011 
 7a.3. Beautification Advisory Commission – October 26, 2011 
 7a.4. Planning Commission – November 29, 2011 
 7a.5. Board of Review – December 13, 2011 
 7a.6. Tax Increment Finance Authority – December 13, 2011 

7b. Motion – Approve Another Amendment to 2009 Federal Justice Assistance Grant 
RESOLVED:  To approve the amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement Between and Among 
Participants in the 2009 Federal Bureau of Justice Assistance Edward Byrne Justice Assistance Grant 
Program. 

7d. Motion – Approval of the OHM Scope of Engineering Services for the 2012 Pavement Maintenance Program 
RESOLVED: To approve the costs associated with the Scope of Engineering Services provided by 
OHM Engineering Services where the City will be charged on a time-and-materials basis for the not-to-
exceed amount of $ 65,000.00 to support the 2012 Pavement Maintenance Program. 

7e. Motion – Approval of the OHM Scope of Engineering Services for the Opdyke Pathway Improvements 
Featherstone to Walton Blvd. 

RESOLVED:  To recommend the approval of the OHM Scope of Engineering Services, provided on an 
hourly basis in an amount not-to-exceed $69,000.00. And further, to authorize the City Manager to 
approve the necessary change orders to bring the project to a successful conclusion.  Funding is to be 
provided by TIFA B, Account No. 27360/83973. 

7f.  Motion – Approve Ravens Youth Football as a Non- Profit Organization 
RESOLVED: To approve the resolution recognizing the Ravens Youth Football as a non-profit 
organization. 

Moved by Mr. McDaniel; Seconded by Ms. Verbeke. 
RESOLVED: To approve Consent Agenda Items 7a., 7b., 7d., 7e., and 7f. 

VOTE: Yes: Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDaniel, McDonald, Verbeke 
   No: None         Motion carried (7-0) 
RESOLUTION NO. 11.12.237 

7c. Motion – Approval of purchase and implementation of BS&A Building Department.Net and Field 
Inspection.Net software modules from BS&A Software 

Moved by Mr. Kittle; Seconded by Ms. Hammond. 
RESOLVED: To approve the purchase and implementation of BS&A Building Department.Net and 
Field Inspection.Net software modules from BS&A Software in the amount of $19,160. 

VOTE: Yes: Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDaniel, McDonald, Verbeke 
   No: None         Motion carried (7-0) 
RESOLUTION NO. 11.12.238 
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7g. Motion – Approve Reporting Requirements to Satisfy GASB 54 Statement 
Moved by Mr. Kittle; Seconded by Mr. Knight. 

RESOLVED: To adopt the resolution declaring that the fund balances of Street Improvement, Park 
Improvement, Sidewalk Improvement, and Storm Water Improvement will be classified as Committed 
fund balances in accordance with GASB 54 beginning with the City’s 2011 audited financial 
statements.   In addition, move to adopt resolution declaring delegation authority to the City Manager, 
Assistance City Manager, Finance Director and the Deputy Finance Director for designating certain 
fund balances in accordance with GASB 54 as being assigned or partially assigned. 

VOTE: Yes: Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDaniel, McDonald, Verbeke 
   No: None         Motion carried (7-0) 
RESOLUTION NO. 11.12.239 

7h. Motion – Approve Employer Opt-out of Public Act 152 for Patrol Unit Employees 
Moved by Mr. Kittle; Seconded by Mr. McDaniel. 

RESOLVED: To adopt the attached resolution (Attachment A) which shall exempt employees of the Patrol 
Unit from health care premium sharing for the period of January 1 through December 31, 2012. 

VOTE: Yes: Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDaniel, McDonald, Verbeke 
   No: None         Motion carried (7-0) 
RESOLUTION NO. 11.12.240 

8. OLD BUSINESS 

8a.  Public Hearing / Motion – Second Reading and Final Adoption of an Ordinance to Amend Chapter 54, Solid 
Waste, of the Auburn Hills City Code 

Mayor McDonald opened the public hearing at 8:35 p.m. 

Pat Greve, Waste Management representative asked if he could answer any questions. 

Mayor McDonald stated he was disappointed in the lack of information given to the residents and asked if any 
more information would be sent to residents. 

Mr. Greve explained the ordinance required 30 day notice prior to service to begin.  In October, a FAQ type letter 
was mailed to residents explaining they would be receiving a bill, a recycle bin and other information.  After the 
initial letter was mailed, there was information included in the water bill with contact phone numbers for any 
questions as well as information being available on the City‟s website for those with access.  The bill did follow, in 
compliance with the ordinance, on or about December 1

st
.   

The bins were received from the supplier and distribution of those bins, with the flyers, started taking place 
December 12

th
.  Mr. Greve drove through some areas of the City, noting the majority of the bins dropped off curb-

side had been picked up by the residents.  Many calls have been coming in and are being answered by customer 
service; but some of the issues such as a resident not wanting the service are more difficult to resolve.  Customer 
service is requesting names and numbers of those residents and being forwarded on to be answered.   

Mayor McDonald wished there had been an explanation sent with the billing regarding the single trash hauler, 
which would have resulted in an easier transition for the residents.  Mayor McDonald was expecting the residents 
to be flooded with information. 

Mr. Greve apologized that the rollout wasn‟t handled the way Council expected. Mr. Greve noted that prior to a 
contract with Waste Management the City had done a wonderful job on keeping the residents informed of the 
prospect of a single waste hauler.  

Mr. Greve stated there hadn‟t been many complaints or questions from residents, with the exception of what day 
their pick-up would be.  He noted Waste Management handled the roll-out of the program, similar to the way it 
has been done with other communities; however, the timing was difficult because of the ordinance restriction. 

Mayor McDonald explained a resident had contacted him, wanting to pay an annual rate for trash pick-up and 
called the 800 number, which was automated.  After all the prompts the resident still wasn‟t able to talk with a 
person, and ended up calling the Wixom phone number.  Why with a roll-out program, isn‟t there a live person to 
talk with and answer questions? 

Mr. Greve stated there are 50+ live agents at the 800 number.  It‟s possible the resident called after hours.  
Because some residents have credit balances from being previous customers, and some residents that choose 
not to have yard waste, the amounts vary.  That‟s why an annual amount was not included on the bills. 

Mayor McDonald asked what would be done about the vacant homes. 
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Mr. Greve explained the City had provided Waste Management with a list of homes that were vacant.  If the City 
wasn‟t 100% sure the home was vacant, then they were provided a bin for service. There is vacancy waiver 
process for those vacant homes not to be billed. 

Ms. Hammond would have preferred to see an annual amount on her bill.  She is a current Waste Management 
customer and wasn‟t able to pay her bill on line, as she has in the past.  Also, some residents inquiring as to an 
annual amount were given comments such as multiply the amount on the bill by four or others didn‟t know at all.   

Ms. Verbeke stated she had called requesting an annual amount.  She was told an amount that included the trash 
container and had she not know the trash container was not mandatory she would have paid that amount.  She 
suggested that customer service better explain to customers the fees and what they do and don‟t include.   

Mr. Greve stated he remembers the call and has since created a matrix of all the possibilities for the customer 
service representatives to refer to for new customers.  

Ms. Doyle stated she has a number of questions, many of which came from Heritage in the Hills. The flyer states 
clear glass only, what about wine bottles?   

Mr. Greve explained all clean glass can be recycled, the recyclers are not going to pick through the bin and leave 
the colored glass on the curb.  There are places that will use the colored glass.  The flyers that were distributed 
are from the independent recycle facility.   

Mr. Greve stated if in doubt of whether to put something in a recycle bin or not, error on putting it in the bin and 
suggested if able, everyone should tour a recycle facility and learn about the process and the ability to separate 
items.   

Ms. Doyle also noted the need to make available an annual amount and the benefit of paying annually; noting the 
fuel cost.  She also reiterated the need of the customer service reps being better prepared to answer questions; 
noting one resident wished to pay annually with the snowbird provision, but wasn‟t able to receive the information. 

Another issue is these residents are being billed for yard waste, when none of them should be.  

Mr. Greve stated he is aware of the matter and is in the process of correcting the error.  

Ms. Doyle mentioned many of the Heritage in the Hills residents are snow birds and many are already gone.  The 
bins of those residents who are gone, have been turned up-side down and the flyers that were in the bins are now 
littering the neighborhood.  

Mr. Greve stated the crews had gone back to those snow-bird homes to pick-up the bins, but the bins had already 
been picked-up by the neighborhood maintenance and placed in the homeowners‟ garages.  

Mr. McDaniel suggested the delivery of the bins be done more carefully; he witnessed someone sitting and 
chucking the bins from the back of a pick-up truck as it moved along.  He personally didn‟t receive the information 
that was included in the bins, assuming it had blown away when the bins was tossed. 

Mr. Kittle too, was disappointed in how Waste Management proceeded with the process of distributing 
information, bins and bills.  Also, the lack of knowledge of customer service and not being prepared to answer 
questions was very disappointing.  He noted this was a very big deal to the City, though it may not have been for 
Waste Management; from an execution point, this was a disaster.  He didn‟t understand why a snow-bird option 
wouldn‟t be available until next year for customers.  

Mr. Greve noted the back of the packet has adhesive that should have been adhered directly to the bins. 

Mr. Greve apologized and stated he would talk with the customer service manager first thing in the morning to 
resolve all the issues.   

Mr. Kittle asked about the fuel price that was set at the start of this process, $3.86 per gallon; was that diesel fuel 
or unleaded gas.  

Mr. Greve stated it is diesel fuel and is based on the mid-west fuel index benchmark, and doesn‟t know what the 
benchmark is today.  

For clarification, Mr. Greve stated the comment on the bill stating service cannot be terminated, but can be 
disrupted for snow birds.  And he confirmed, not all 96 gallon trash carts are the same. 

Mr. Knight stated he hopes the federal government will establish a price of diesel fuel the first of the year and it 
will be reported to the City Manager to know exactly where it starts.   

Mr. Greve agreed to pass the information on to the City Manager as stipulated in the contract; however, the base 
has already been set at $3.86 at the time of the agreement.   

Ms. Verbeke requested the Council see a copy of the next bill prior to being mailed, possibly being able to make 
adjustments or notes. 
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Joe Yoblonski, 161 Robert Ct., explained he is retired and on social security and cannot afford to have garbage 
collection.  He currently has someone take his one small trash bag and combine it with theirs.  

Mr. Auger stated the City is looking at different options, including discussing the issue with Senior Citizens 
Director Adcock. 

Karen Roach asked about Section 54-110 of the ordinance regarding the separation of mandatory recycling 
materials, individuals living alone could be exempted from mandatory recycling, noting that particular section has 
been removed from the ordinance and asked why.   

City Attorney Beckerleg explained that recycling is not mandatory, but if you choose to recycle you must separate 
recyclable materials.   

Mayor McDonald closed the public hearing at 9:23 p.m. 

Moved by Ms. Hammond; Seconded Ms. Doyle. 
RESOLVED: To adopt an ordinance to amend Chapter 54. Solid Waste of the Auburn Hills City Code on 
second reading, to be known as Ordinance No. 11-839. 
VOTE: Yes: Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDaniel, McDonald, Verbeke 
   No: None         Motion carried (7-0) 
RESOLUTION NO. 11.12.241 

9. NEW BUSINESS – none. 

10. COMMENTS AND MOTION FROM COUNCIL 

Mr. Knight: 

 Wished all a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year. 

 Announced his hot fudge was available. 

 Suggested anyone wishing to purchase a Christmas tree or wreath that River Church has them for sale 
and a portion of every sale is contributed to the Auburn Hills Boys and Girls Club. 

 The Boys and Girls Club could use volunteers, particularly in the computer room. 

Ms. Verbeke: 

 Wished everyone a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year. 

Ms. Doyle: 

 Questioned if the water and sewer meters the City installed on homes is the same type of technology as 
the SMART meters. 

Mr. Auger stated yes, they are similar.  The readings can be done remotely and cuts down on labor costs 
of walking meter to meter.  Also, one reason bill costs are higher, is because the readings are more 
accurate.  

Ms. Doyle stated since the City already uses this technology, it would be difficult for Council to pass a 
resolution to not allow DTE to install meters. 

Mr. Auger explained he spoke with the Mayor of Rochester Hills and there is no moratorium in Rochester 
Hills or any of the other mentioned communities.  The resolution passed by the communities is to revisit 
the issue. 

 Merry Christmas and Happy Holidays to all. 

Mr. McDaniel: 

 Merry Christmas and Happy New Year to everyone. 

Mr. Kittle: 

 Have a great end of the year, Merry Christmas, Happy New Year and Happy Holidays. 

Ms. Hammond: 

 “Well I didn‟t get into the debate earlier, but I just wanted to say I‟m extremely disappointed with how 
things went down this evening.  I think that we all have families, children and outside interests, but we 
still do our best to do what we were elected to do.   Other than that, Merry Christmas and Happy New 
Year to everyone.” (Verbatim) 
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Mayor McDonald: 

 Merry Christmas and Happy New Year. 

 Looking forward to 2012 and make great things happen again for the City. 

11. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT – none. 

12. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 Regarding the TIGER III grant, the City was notified by the federal government that the City did not 
receive funding.  The State of Michigan only received one grant and that went to the Port Huron area; 
three went to Illinois.     

13. ADJOURNMENT 
Hearing no objections, the meeting adjourned at 9:23 p.m. 
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Attachment A 

City of Auburn Hills, Michigan 
Resolution No. 11-12-240 

 
 
WHEREAS, Public Act 152 of 2011 was approved by the Michigan Legislature and signed into law by the 
Governor and was designed to lessen the burden of employee health premium costs on public employers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Auburn Hills accepts its role in identifying the most efficient way of managing limited 
financial resources including the way in which it elects to comply with Public Act 152; and  
 
WHEREAS, communities are given three options for complying with the requirements of Public Act 152, each 
having a distinct impact on the employees of each community; and  
 
WHEREAS, the three options available to the City are: 
 

1)  Apply the hard cap (capped dollar amount the Employer may pay toward an employee‟s annual 
health care premium costs - $5,500 single / $11,000 couple / $15,000 family) 

2) Adopt, by a 2/3 majority vote of the governing body, the 80/20% cost-sharing provision which permits 
the Employer to pay no more than 80% of health care premiums 

3) Adopt, by a 2/3 majority vote of the governing body, to exempt itself from the cost-sharing provisions 
of the Act for 2012 and in turn, revisit the issue for 2013. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council, with a required 2/3 majority vote, does hereby exempt the Patrol Unit from the 
requirements of the Act for 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes its responsibility to revisit its options again in late 2012 for 2013 and to 
take action to comply with Public Act 152 of 2011. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Auburn Hills hereby exempts its Patrol Unit employees from the 
requirements set forth in Public Act 152 for the period January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012. 
 
 
AYES: Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDaniel, McDonald, Verbeke 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTENTIONS: None 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
 )ss 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 
 
I, Thomas A. Tanghe, the duly qualified and appointed Acting City Clerk of the City of Auburn Hills, Oakland 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a Resolution adopted at a 
regular meeting of the Auburn Hills City Council held on the 19th day of December, 2011, the original of which is 
on file in my office.In witness whereof, I have hereunto affixed my official signature on this 20th day of December 
2011. 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
 Thomas A. Tanghe 
 Acting City Clerk 
 



 
Unapproved 

 

J A N U A R Y  9 ,  2 0 1 2                                                     A G E N D A  I T E M  N O .   7 A . 1 .   
 

The City of Auburn Hills 
 Tax Abatement Review Committee Meeting December 12, 2011 
 

LOCATION:  Administrative Conference Room, 1827 N. Squirrel Road, Auburn Hills MI 48326 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER: Chairperson DeClerck called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL: Present: Chairperson DeClerck, Committee Members – McDaniel, Iacobelli 

and Landsberg  

                  Also Present:  City Assessor Bennett, Assessor Lohmeier and Deputy 
Assessor Blinkilde 

  Absent: Nelson 
 
3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES – November 7, 2011 

 
Mr. McDaniel requested that the approval of the minutes be delayed until after the new 
business is completed.  There were no objections. 

 
4.  NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Request for Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate – TD Joslyn Rd, LLC 
 

TD Joslyn Rd, LLC was represented by Tom and Doreen LaSorda, its owners.  Mr. LaSorda 
had appeared at the October TARC meeting to request approval of a Commercial 
Rehabilitation District for the property at 3900 Joslyn Road where he intends on establishing 
“IncWell, LLC”, a business incubator.  City Council approved the district at their November 
14, 2011 meeting. 
 
Mr. LaSorda is requesting a Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate before 
commencing with the rehabilitation of the existing building.  The drawings for the renovations 
are almost complete.  The original estimated cost to rehabilitate the building was about 
$770,000 as indicated on the application; however, as the renovation plan has progressed, 
this estimate has increased to about $950,000. 
 
Motion by Mr. Iacobelli to forward to city council, a recommendation to approve the 
Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate application by TD Joslyn Rd, LLC.  The 
certificate would run for 10 years beginning 12/31/2012 and ending 12/30/2022, with the 
understanding that the company will continue operating at that facility at least 4 years after 
the certificate expires.   
 
[Legal description: T3N, R10E, SEC 4 PONTIAC ACRES SUB PART OF LOTS 6 & 7, ALSO ALL OF LOTS 8 TO 14 INCL, 
ALSO PART OF LOT 15, ALSO PART OF SE 1/4 ALL DESC AS BEG AT PT DIST N 02-42-27 W 60 FT & S 87-27-26 W 1070 
FT FROM SE SEC COR, TH S 87-27-26 W 715.98 FT, TH N 08-58-12 W 626 FT, TH N 81-01-48 E 256 FT, TH S 08-58-12 E 
124.60 FT, TH N 81-01-48 E 436.72 FT, TH S 08-58-12 E 160.75 FT, TH N 81-01-48 E 18.76 FT, TH S 08-58-12 E 420.79 FT 
TO BEG 10-26-11 FR 016 & 476-011] [PIN: 02-14-04-476-013] 

 
 

C I T Y  O F  A U B U R N  H I L L S  

C I T Y  C O U N C I L  A G E N D A  
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Supported by Mr. Landsberg.  
 
Vote: Yes: McDaniel, Landsberg, DeClerck, Iacobelli  
  No:     None                     Motion carried (4-0) 
 

b. Request for Industrial Facility Exemption Certificate – Dynamic Corporation 
 
Dynamic Corporation was represented by Ray Atwood, its Vice President of Manufacturing.  
The company provides manufacturing services, including prototyping, for the automotive and 
other manufacturing businesses.  The company has recently installed $586,000 of machinery 
required for new contracts. According to the current Tax Abatement Policy, application for a 
tax abatement must precede the installation of personal property.  Mr. Atwood understands 
this and indicated that there was urgency in acquiring and installing this machinery to fulfill a 
contract.  The equipment was ordered in November and installed at the beginning of 
December. Mr. Bennett received the application from the clerk’s office on December 5, 2011, 
before the installation of the equipment. 
 
There are two additional jobs created with the implementation of the new machinery.  
Currently, there are 22 employees. Mr. Atwood anticipates that they will need to expand the 
building in, as early as, 1 year if the company continues to grow as it has been. 
 
Various committee members reiterated that if the company applies for abatements in the 
future, they must do so in advance of any construction or installation. 
 
There was discussion on whether or not this business qualifies as Manufacturing versus 
Research and Technology.  Mr. Bennett opined that Research and Technology best 
described the company’s purpose since it does not do production manufacturing.  In either 
case, they would still be eligible for an 8 year abatement (maximum allowed under current 
policy). 
 
Dynamic Realty is appealing their 2010 and 2011 real property value to the Michigan Tax 
Tribunal.   
 
Mr. Iacobelli noted that most questions on the supplemental information sheet were marked 
n/a, but feels that some of them would be applicable to the installation of the new machinery, 
such as question #10 regarding industrial waste.  Mr. Atwood explained that the machines do 
not generate much waste. The machines’ coolant is water soluble and most evaporates 
during the cutting.  Trapped waste is removed by industrial waste companies periodically. 
 
Motion by Mr. Iacobelli to forward to city council, a recommendation to approve the Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate application by Dynamic Corporation for personal property 
installed at 2193 Executive Hills Dr. with the caveat that the committee is aware that the 
purchase has already been made, but still recommends an 8 year abatement beginning 
12/31/2012 and ending 12/30/2020, with the understanding that the company will continue 
operating at that facility at least 2 years after the certificate expires.   

 
Supported by Mr. Landsberg.  
 
Vote: Yes: Landsberg, DeClerck, Iacobelli, McDaniel  
  No:     None                     Motion carried (4-0) 
 

5. OLD BUSINESS 



Tax Abatement Review Committee Minutes – December 12, 2011 
Page 3 

 

 
a. Approval of Minutes 
 
 Discussion of October minutes – adjustments made, as directed. 
 

Approval of minutes – November 7, 2011 
 

Motion by Mr. Landsberg that the TARC minutes of November 7, 2011 be accepted, as 
written. 
  
Supported by Mr. Iacobelli 
 

 Vote: Yes: DeClerck, Landsberg, Iacobelli, McDaniel  
   No:     None                     Motion carried (4-0) 

 
b. Discussion of Tax Incentive Policy 

 
The committee reviewed all of the proposed changes to the tax incentive policy.  They will 
review the final draft at the next TARC meeting. 
 

Next meeting:   January 10, 2012 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no objections, the meeting was adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
Karen Blinkilde, Deputy Assessor 
O:\assessor\PA 198_IFEC\TARC\2011\12_12_11\Minutes TARC 12-12-11.docx 
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January 9, 2012 Meeting Agenda Item No.  7b. 
 

To: Mayor and City Council Department of Public Services 

From: Peter E. Auger, City Manager, and Ronald J. Melchert, Director of Public Service 

Submitted: January 4, 2012 

Subject: Resolution:  Performance Resolution For Governmental Bodies 

INTRODUCTION AND HISTORY 
 

The Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) has sent the City of Auburn Hills a permit application to allow specific 

activities to take place within the State right of way during the 2012 calendar year.  These activities can be found on the 

face of the attached annual permit application and includes tree trimming, underground and aerial utilities operation and 

maintenance, land surveys, soil borings, hazardous spills, banners, and route closures (such as the connector ramp for 

Palace events).  The activities may occur as routine or emergency in nature and are covered under the permit at no cost.  

Other items not covered by the permit will require additional action by the City when an event presents itself. 

MDOT is requiring an updated resolution from the City, designating the persons authorized to sign permits that relate to 

the other items not covered under the annual permit, such as, the installation of signs, plantings, irrigation, and soil 

borings within the limited access right of way.  The attached resolution identifies responsibility for claims that may arise 

out of either party’s acts or failure to act as provided by law.  In essence, the resolution makes each party responsible for 

their own acts.  It is not intended to increase either party’s liability for, or immunity from, tort claims. 

The resolution update is not a new function of the annual permit process that the City engages in each year, and will 

require review from time to time.  The last resolution update was approved by City Council in November of 2009.  The 

attached resolution is fairly self explanatory, straight forward, and incorporates the same language as previous year 

versions.  There are no changes to the personnel authorized to apply to MDOT for necessary permits not covered by the 

annual permit.  The City’s attorney, Derk Beckerleg, has reviewed the resolution and responded that the wording is 

satisfactory from a legal stand point. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
It would be appropriate for City Council to approve the resolution submitted for consideration by adopting the 
following motion: 

 
MOTION 

 

Move to approve the “Performance Resolution for Governmental Bodies” as required by MDOT for the purposes 

of receiving the 2012 annual permit for miscellaneous operations within the State trunkline right of way. 

 

I CONCUR:  
 PETER E. AUGER, CITY MANAGER 
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January 9, 2012 Meeting Agenda Item No.  9a. 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council  CITY ASSESSOR 

From:  Peter Auger, City Manager, and Victor Bennett, Assessor 
Submitted:  January 4, 2012  
Subject:  Public Hearing and Request to Approve Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption 

Certificate, (CREC) TD Joslyn Road, LLC (LaSorda Group) 
.  
       
       

INTRODUCTION AND HISTORY 
 
An application for a Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate has been received for real 
property to be located at 3900 Joslyn Rd., Parcel 02-14-04-476-013.   
 
This property consists of 13.08 acres, has approximately 45,875 square feet of building area, and 
was constructed in 1994 as a retail supermarket for Foodtown. This property is situated along Joslyn 
Road, near I-75. The property has been vacant for over 10 years. 
 
TD Joslyn Road LLC intends on beginning work immediately and anticipates all work will be 
completed by June 2012.  The project will involve converting the building into a “business incubator” 
and will house various businesses and provide office and workshop space for their specific research 
and development activities.  The expected project outcomes include; 
 

 Increased commercial activity. 

 Create employment. 
 
Background of Public Act 210 Commercial Rehabilitation Act 
 
 PA 210 encourages the rehabilitation of commercial property by abating the property taxes 
generated from any new investment for a period of up to ten (10) years.  As defined, commercial 
property is a facility that includes a building or group of contiguous building of commercial property 
that is 15 years or older, of which the primary purpose is the operation of a commercial business 
enterprise or multifamily residential use.  Types of commercial business enterprises include office, 
engineering, research and development, warehousing, parts distribution, retail sales, and other 
commercial activities.  Multifamily residential is housing that consists of five or more units.  
Commercial properties allocated new market tax credits are also considered a qualified facility. 
 
Rehabilitation is defined as changes to qualified facilities that are required to restore or modify the 
property, together with all appurtenances, to an economically efficient condition.  PA 210 requires that 
new investment in the property must result in improvements aggregating to more than 10 % of the 
true cash value of the property at commencement of the rehabilitation.  The 2011 True Cash Value of 
the qualified facility is $1,120,750. The current city Property Tax Abatement Policy does not cover PA 
210, but for PA 198 Industrial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificates, the rehabilitation investment 
must be equal to at least 25%.   
 
 



                                                                                                                                      

November 14, 2011 District Established 
 
Before the exemption can be granted, the local unit must first establish a Commercial Rehabilitation 
District. At its November 14th City Council meeting, the City Council approved the resolution to 
establish a Commercial Rehabilitation District for the subject parcel, as requested by the LaSorda 
Group.     
 
Effects of Commercial Rehabilitation Certificate 
 
The Commercial Rehabilitation Tax freezes the taxable value of the building and exempts the new 
investment from local taxes. The school operating tax and the State Education Tax (SET) are still 
levied on the new investment. Land and personal property cannot be abated under this act. 
 
The total project investment is estimated at just over $770,000 for various demolition and renovation 
work.    
 
TD Joslyn Road LLC is requesting a ten-year exemption which would begin on December 31, 2012 
and end on December 30, 2022.  Approval of a 10-year exemption would cost the city approximately 
$40,000 in lost revenue. Approval of the exemption will save TD Joslyn Road LLC approximately 
$89,000 over the course of ten years.   
 
TAX ABATEMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 

Motion by Mr. Iacobelli to forward to city council, a recommendation to approve the Commercial 
Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate application by TD Joslyn Rd, LLC.  The certificate would run for 10 
years beginning 12/31/2012 and ending 12/30/2022, with the understanding that the company will 
continue operating at that facility at least 4 years after the certificate expires.   
 

Vote: Yes: McDaniel, Landsberg, DeClerck, Iacobelli  
  No:     None                     Motion carried (4-0) 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Because the city does not currently have a written policy for commercial rehabilitation exemptions if 
you were to consider the city’s policy for industrial rehabilitation the maximum would be 8 years with 
the requirement for the taxpayer to stay an additional two years. On June 6, 2011, City Council 
approved the first Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate for Legend Value for the former 
Wal Mart property. Legend Valve was approved for 10 years.  
 
Approval of the application is recommended for 10 years, subject to the applicant signing a written 
Tax Abatement Development Agreement   
 
MOTION 
 
Move to approve the request for a 10 year Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate for TD 
Joslyn Road, LLC by adopting the attached resolution, conditioned upon the applicant signing a Tax 
Abatement Development Agreement approved by the City Attorney.  

I CONCUR:  
 PETER AUGER, CITY MANAGER 
 



CITY OF AUBURN HILLS 
RESOLUTION 

APPROVING A COMMERCIAL REHABILITATION EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE FOR 
TD JOSLYN ROAD, LLC 

 
At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Auburn Hills, Oakland 

County, Michigan, held in the Council Chambers at 1827 N. Squirrel Road, Auburn Hills 
MI 48326 on the 9th day of January, 2012. 
 
The following resolution was offered by Councilperson       and supported by 
Councilperson               
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to P.A. 210, 2005, M.C.L. 207.841 et seq., after a duly 
noticed public hearing held on the 14th day of November, 2011, the City of Auburn Hills, 
established a Commercial Rehabilitation District, commonly referred to as the LaSorda 
Group Commercial Rehabilitation District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, TD Joslyn Road, LLC has filed an application for a Commercial 
Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate with the Clerk of the City of Auburn Hills with 
respect to proposed rehabilitation investment within the LaSorda Group Commercial 
Rehabilitation District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, before acting on said application, the City Council of Auburn Hills 
held a public hearing on the 9th day of January, 2012 at a regularly scheduled public 
meeting, at which time the applicant, the assessor, and a representative of the affected 
taxing units were given written notice and were afforded an opportunity to be heard on 
said application; and 
 
 WHEREAS, completion of the proposed rehabilitation is calculated to and will at 
the time of issuance of the certificate have the reasonable likelihood to retain, create or 
prevent the loss of employment in Auburn Hills and establish a viable business in a 
currently vacant facility; and 
 

WHEREAS, the taxable value of the property proposed to be exempt plus the 
aggregate taxable value of property previously exempt and currently in force under 
Public Act 210 of 2005 or under Public Act 198 of 1974 (IFT's) does exceed 5% of the 
total taxable value of the City of Auburn Hills; and 

 
WHEREAS, exceeding 5% will not have the effect of substantially impeding the 

operation of or impairing the financial soundness of the City of Auburn Hills; and 
 
WHEREAS, the application is for commercial property as defined in section 2(a) 

of Public Act 210 of 2005; and 
 
 WHEREAS, TD Joslyn Road, LLC is not delinquent in any taxes related to the 
facility; and 



 
 WHEREAS, TD Joslyn Road, LLC has provided answers to all required 
questions under the application instructions to the City of Auburn Hills; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Auburn Hills requires that rehabilitation of the facility shall 
be completed by June 31, 2012; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the commencement of the rehabilitation of the facility did not occur 
more than six months prior to the filing of the application for exemption; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the application relates to a rehabilitation program that when 
completed constitutes a qualified facility within the meaning of Public Act 210 of 2005 
and that is situated within a Commercial Rehabilitation District established under Public 
Act 210 of 2005; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the rehabilitation includes improvements aggregating 10% or more 
of the true cash value of the property at commencement of the rehabilitation as provided 
by section 2(j) of Public Act 210 of 2005. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY the City Council of Auburn Hills that: 
 
1. The application for a Commercial Rehabilitation Facilities Exemption 
Certificate with respect to a facility on the following described parcel of real 
property situated within the LsSorda Group Commercial Rehabilitation District to 
wit;  
 
T3N, R10E, SEC 4 PONTIAC ACRES SUB PART OF LOTS 1 TO 7 INCL, ALSO PART OF LOT 15, ALSO ALL OF 
LOT 16, ALSO PART OF LOT 17, ALSO PART OF SE 1/4 ALL DESC AS BEG AT PT DIST N 02-42-27 W 60 FT & S 
87-27-26 W 894.36 FT FROM SE SEC COR, TH S 87-27-26 W 175.64 FT, TH N 08-58-12 W 420.79 FT, TH S 81-
01-48 W 18.76 FT, TH N 08-58-12 W 160.75 FT, TH S 81-01-48 W 436.72 FT, TH N 08-58-12 W 567.64 FT, TH N 
81-01-48 E 7.56 FT, TH N 74-33-21 E 507.17 FT, TH N 81-00-24 E 234.27 FT, TH N 87-27-26 E 22.23 FT, TH S 02-
32-34 E 1231.38 FT TO BEG 10-26-11 FR  011, 012 & 452-016. 

 
Also Known as Tax Parcel 02-14-04-476-013. 

 
is hereby approved. 
 
2. The Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate shall remain in force and 
effect for a period of 10 years, and the starting date for the certificate is December 
30, 2012 and the ending date is December 30, 2022. 
 
3. The total project investment approved is $770,000. 

 
4.  TD Joslyn Road, LLC agrees to operate the facility for which the Commercial 
Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate is granted for the term of the certificate, plus 
an additional four (4) years after the date of the expiration. 

 
 



 
AYES:  
NAYS:  

           ABSENT:  
ABSTENTIONS:  

 RESOLUTION  
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN) 
                                     )ss 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly appointed City Clerk for the City of Auburn Hills, 
Oakland County, Michigan do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete 
copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Auburn Hills City Council held 
on the 9th day of January, 2012. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature on this       
day of January, 2012. 

 
 
 _______________________________ 
                                        
 Terri Kowal   
 City Clerk 























 
 
 

 

 

 
STANDARD TAX ABATEMENT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 
 
 
 
-----------------------, hereinafter referred to as the “Company” submitted an 
application to City Council for the granting of  an Commercial Rehabilitation 
Exemption Certificate  (CREC) pursuant to Michigan Public Acts 210, of 2005, as 
amended. 
 
In recognition of the granting of the CREC by City Council for the benefit of the 
tax savings of the Company, and for the economic growth of the City, I hereby 
agree on behalf of the Company to the following; 
 
1. The Company will furnish notification of the completion of the construction of 
the facility to the City Assessor and the State Tax Commission, within 30 days of 
the date of completion. If there is no construction progress for a facility under 
construction for more than 180 continuous days, the Company will notify the City 
Assessor.  
 
2. Within 90 days of the date of completion of the facility, the Company will 
report; 
 
 a. The final cost of the facility to the City Assessor and the State Tax 
 Commission. 
 
 b. The number of jobs created by completion of the facility, not including 
jobs transferred from other locations.   
 
 If the actual project costs are more than 10% less than the estimated 
costs given in the application, or if the number of jobs created are less than 10 % 
of the number estimated in the application, the Company will provide an 
explanation.  
 
3. As a condition of receiving a CREC, or an extension of an existing certificate, 
pursuant to this policy, the Company agrees to cause the facility to operate for 
the term specified in the CREC, plus an additional term after the date of 
expiration of the CREC according to the following schedule:  
 A. Tax abatement of up to eight (8) years (including extensions) = Length 
of the abatement plus two years.  
 
 B. Tax abatement over eight (8) years = (including extensions) = Length of 
the abatement plus four years.  
 

Deleted: has 

Deleted: 0f

Deleted: and
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Deleted: a company
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Deleted: for which the CREC is granted 

Deleted: of



 
 
 

 

4. The Company further understands that if it permanently vacates or fails to 
operate the facility for which the CREC is granted for the period of time as 
outlined above, that the Company is liable for repayment of any property tax 
savings benefiting the Company due to the existence of the CREC, beginning 
with the initial effective year of the CREC.This provisions may be waived by the 
City Council at the request of the Company for justifiable cause.  
 
5. The Company further agrees to pay its real and personal property taxes timely 
and without penalty. In addition, the Company agrees to inform the City Assessor 
and the City Treasurer of any plans to relocate the Company from any location 
within the City, 30 days prior to the relocation.   
  
6. The Company agrees to notify the City Assessor and City Treasurer of any 
change in the ownership of the Company’s real and personal property assets or 
a majority share of the Company’s stocks.  For the purposes of this Agreement, a 
new owner or lessee shall be defined as follows: 
 

i. For Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificates that 
pertain to real property improvements, the term “new owner 
or lessee” shall be defined as follows: 

   
1.) A new entity that acquires, owns and occupies or 

leases and occupies the facility after the existing 
certificate holder has physically moved from or 
vacated the facility. 

 
  Or 
 
2.) An entity that acquires an ownership interest of more 

than 50% in the existing certificate holder entity that 
owns and occupies or leases and occupies that 
facility. 

 
ii. For Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificates 

pertaining to personal property, the term “new owner or 
lessee” shall be defined as follows: 

 
1.) A new entity that acquires from the existing certificate 

holder entity the ownership of the facility or leasehold 
interest in the facility and which keep the facility at its 
current location. 

 
     Or 
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Deleted: a



 
 
 

 

2.) An entity that acquires an ownership interest of more 
than 50% in the existing certificate holder entity that 
owns or leases the facility. 

 
 
 
 

7. Whenever there is a new owner or lessee, as defined above, of any real or 
personal property for which a CREC has been granted, the new owner or 
lessee shall make application for a transfer of the certificate to the new owner 
or lessee immediately, but no longer than six (6) months after a change in 
ownership occurs.  The City Council may grant requests to transfer existing 
certificates, provided requests are consistent with the City’s adopted Tax 
Abatement Policy, or any amendments made to the policy, that is in effect at 
the time a request for a transfer is made.  An updated tax abatement 
development agreement shall accompany any request for a transfer of a 
certificate to a new owner or lessee. 

 
8. The Company further agrees to abide by all other city ordinances, building and 
zoning codes during the operation of the facility.    
 
By the signatures of representatives of both the Company and the City below, it 
is understood that both the Company’s investment in the project and the City’s 
investment through the granting of the CREC is to encourage the economic 
growth of all. 
 
 
WITNESS:      COMPANY: 
 
______________________________  BY:________________________________ 
 
 
         ITS:  _____________________________ 
 
DATED:  ________________ 
 
 
   ACKNOWLEDGED BY THE CITY OF AUBURN HILLS 
 
WITNESS: 
 
________________________________  BY:______________________________ 
 

       ITS:  MAYOR 
 
 
DATED: _____________________ 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 

             BY: _______________________________ 
 
      ITS: CITY CLERK 
 
      DATED: _________________ 
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January 9, 2012 Meeting     Agenda Item No. 9b.  
 

To: Mayor and City Council CITY ASSESSOR 

From: Peter E. Auger, City Manager, and Victor Bennett, Assessor 

Submitted: January 4
th
, 2012 

Subject: Motion:  Public Hearing and Request to Approve IFEC – Dynamic Corporation 

INTRODUCTION AND HISTORY 
 
An application for an IFEC has been received for personal property to be located at 2193 Executive Hills Blvd.   The total 
project investment is estimated at $586,120 for new machinery.  The total project will result in the retention of 17 jobs and the 
creation of 2 new jobs.  
 
Under the Tax Abatement Policy (Policy) approved by City Council on December 21, 2009, the application submitted could 
be considered as an expansion of an existing business. 
 
Dynamic Corporation leases the property from Dynamic Realty, a related entity.  The lease has been extended to 
12/31/2021. If the tax incentive is approved for 8 years, the company will save approximately $14,500, and the loss in 
revenue to the City of Auburn Hills will be $6,670.  
  
Dynamic Realty has appealed the 2010 and 2011 taxes on the real property to the Michigan Tax Tribunal, and is 
claiming a reduction in taxes totaling $42,428, including $9,440 in city taxes. The company also has an 8 year IFEC, 
on other personal property, which runs to 12/21/2015.  
 
TAX ABATEMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

Motion by Mr. Iacobelli to forward to city council, a recommendation to approve the Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificate application by Dynamic Corporation for personal property installed at 2193 Executive 
Hills Dr. with the caveat that the committee is aware that the purchase has already been made, but still 
recommends an 8 year abatement beginning 12/31/2012 and ending 12/30/2020, with the understanding that 
the company will continue operating at that facility at least 2 years after the certificate expires.   
Supported by Mr. Landsberg.  
Vote: Yes: Landsberg, DeClerck, Iacobelli, McDaniel  
  No:       None                      
               Motion carried (4-0) 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Approval of the application is recommended for 8 years for personal property, based on the current city policy. 

MOTION 

Move to approve the request for an 8 year IFEC for Dynamic Corporation for a total personal property investment of 
$586,120 by adopting the attached resolution.   

 
I CONCUR: 

 

 

 

 PETER E. AUGER, CITY MANAGER 

 



 
CITY OF AUBURN HILLS 

RESOLUTION 
APPROVING AN INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE 

FOR DYNAMIC CORPORATION 
 

 At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Auburn Hills, Oakland 

County, Michigan, held in the Council Chambers at 1827 N. Squirrel Road, Auburn Hills 

MI 48326 on the 9th day of January, 2012. 

The following resolution was offered by Councilperson              and supported by 

Councilperson         

 WHEREAS, pursuant to P.A. 198, 1974, M.C.L. 207.551 et seq., after a duly 

noticed public hearing held on the 13th day of  November, 1986 the City of Auburn Hills, 

established an Industrial Development District, commonly referred to as the Samelson 

Development Company Industrial Development District; and 

 WHEREAS, Dynamic Corporation has filed an application for an Industrial 

Facility Exemption Certificate with the Clerk of the City of Auburn Hills with respect to 

proposed new personal property to be acquired and installed within the Samelson 

Development Company Industrial Development District; and  

 WHEREAS, before acting on said application, the City Council of Auburn Hills 

held a public hearing on the 9th day of January, 2012  at a regularly scheduled meeting, 

at which time the applicant, the assessor, and a representative of the affected taxing 

units were given written notice and were afforded an opportunity to be heard on said 

application; and 

WHEREAS, construction and installation of the facility has not begun earlier than 

six (6) months before December 5, 2011, the date of the acceptance of the application 

for the Industrial Facility Exemption Certificate; and 

 WHEREAS, completion of the personal property is calculated to and will at the 

time of issuance of the certificate have the reasonable likelihood to retain, create or 

prevent the loss of employment in Auburn Hills; and 

 WHEREAS, the aggregate SEV of real and personal property exempt from ad 

valorem taxes within the City of Auburn Hills after granting this certificate will exceed 5% 

of an amount equal to the sum of the SEV of the unit, plus the SEV of personal and real 

property thus exempted. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY the City Council of Auburn Hills that: 

1. The City Council of Auburn Hills finds and determines that the granting of this 

Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, together with the aggregate amount of 

the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificates previously granted and currently in 

force, under Act No. 198 of the Public Acts of 1974, shall not have the effect of 

substantially impeding the operation of the City of Auburn Hills, or of impairing 

the financial soundness of a taxing unit which levies an ad valorem property tax in 

the City of Auburn Hills. 



2. The application for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate with respect to 

a facility on the following described parcel of real property situated within the 

Samelson Development Company Industrial Development District; to wit; 

T3N, R10E, SEC 26 PART OF NW 1/4 BEG AT PT DIST N 88-20-02 E 622.06 FT & S 
38-24-46 W 156.83 FT & N 88-20-02 E 827.98 FT & S 01-39-58 E 1135.56 FT FROM 
NW SEC COR, TH S 57-06-51 E 286.84 FT, TH S 02-59-43 W 202.44 FT, TH ALG 
CURVE TO RIGHT, RAD 746 FT, CHORD BEARS S 82-28-34 W 372.82 FT, DIST OF 
376.81 FT, TH N 01-39-58 W 402.50 FT, TH N 88-20-02 E 151.08 FT TO BEG 3.06 
A12-4-96 FR 011. Property Identification Number 02-14-26-126-014. 

is hereby approved for Personal Property Improvements only. 

3. The Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate shall remain in force and effect 

for a period of 8 years, and the starting date for the certificate is December 30, 

2012 and the ending date is December 30, 2020. 

4. The total project investment approved is $586,120. 

5. Dynamic Corporation agrees to operate the facility for which the Industrial 

Facilities Exemption Certificate is granted for the term of the certificate, plus an 

additional two years after the date of the expiration.  

 
 AYES:  
 NAYS:  
 ABSENT: None 
 ABSTENTIONS: None 
                                                                         RESOLUTION ADOPTED 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN) 
 )SS 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND) 

 
 I, the undersigned, the duly appointed City Clerk for the City of Auburn Hills, Oakland 
County, Michigan do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Auburn Hills City Council held on the 9th day of January, 
2012. 
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature on this  th  day of , 2012. 
 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
 
 Terri Kowal  
 City Clerk 
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City of Auburn Hills 
 

Tax Abatement Policy 
 

Revised December 21, 2009 
 

 
 
I.    Definitions 
 

A. Brownfield Redevelopment Site-A Brownfield redevelopment site is a site which has  
 been designated by the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority as a facility in compliance  
 with Michigan codified laws related to the utilization of the Brownfield redevelopment  
 process to address environmental issues on the site.   

 
B. Eligible Businesses- An eligible business is a commercial use or entity, whether sole  
 ownership, partnership or corporation that meets the criteria established in State law for  
 eligibility for tax abatements.  Residential properties, retail establishments and service  
 businesses not meeting the criteria in State law are not eligible for tax abatements. 
 
C. Existing Business- Existing Business is a single proprietorship, partnership or corporation that 

has a facility operating within the corporate limits of the City of Auburn Hills for which a certificate 
of occupancy has been issued, in which operations and/or business of the facility is taking place 
in substantially all of the facility and in which the corporation has been operating under a 
certificate of occupancy for at least one (1) year.  

 
D.  Expansion- An expansion of an existing business is defined as: 

i. Any construction of an addition to an existing building exceeding $500,000 in 
estimated cost or fifteen percent (15%) in floor area. 

 
ii. The construction of an additional building on the same site with an estimated 

construction value exceeding $1,000,000. 
 

iii. The construction of a new facility on a separate site within the corporate limits of 
the City of Auburn Hills by an existing business with an estimated               
construction value exceeding $1,000,000 

 
iv. The installation and/or location on more than a temporary basis of new equipment, 

furniture or other personal property within a facility that meets the              
definition of an existing business with an estimated value of the new personal              
property in excess of $500,000, or 10% of the historical cost of current personal 
property. 

 
E. Expansion Area- Expansion area is additional land on the site of an existing   
 business that can be utilized for expansion of the facilities of the existing business while  
 meeting all of the criteria and requirements of the Code of Ordinances of the City of  
 Auburn Hills and the Zoning Code.  

 
F. Facility - As defined in Public Act 198 as amended. 
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G. MEGA Assistance - MEGA (Michigan Economic Growth Authority) assistance is provided to new 
or expanding businesses by the Michigan Economic Development Corporation and may include 
State tax credits, State grant assistance, State job training or other employment assistance or 
similar actions by the MEDC.  MEGA assistance does not include any State or Federal 
assistance which does not require local participation by the City of Auburn Hills.  

 
H. New Business- A new business is a sole proprietorship, partnership or corporation  

 which does not currently have operations within the corporate limits of the City of Auburn Hills. 
 
I. New Owner or Lessee –  

i. For those industrial facilities exemption certificates that pertain to real property
 improvements, the term “new owner or lessee” shall be defined as follows: 

   
1.) A new entity that acquires, owns and occupies or leases and occupies 

the facility after the existing certificate holder has physically moved from 
or vacated the facility. 

 
  Or 
 
2.) An entity that acquires an ownership interest of more than 50% in the 

existing certificate holder entity that owns and occupies or leases and 
occupies that facility. 

 
 

ii. For those industrial facilities exemption certificates pertaining to personal 
property, the term “new owner or lessee” shall be defined as follows: 

 
1.) A new entity that acquires from the existing certificate holder entity the 

ownership of the facility or leasehold interest in the facility and which 
keep the facility at its current location. 

 
     Or 
 

2.) An entity that acquires an ownership interest of more than 50% in the 
existing certificate holder entity that owns or leases the facility. 

 
J. Personal Property- Personal property is machinery, equipment, furniture, fixtures and  

 similar items as defined in the General Property Tax Act and is limited and included  
 under PA 198 as amended that are utilized by the business in producing the end product  
 of the business. 
 

K. Real Property- Real property is defined as land, buildings, parking lots, utilities and  
 similar items as defined in the General Property Tax Act and as limited and included in  
 PA 198 as amended and as assessed for property tax purposes. 
 

L. Speculative Building-As defined in Public Act 198 as amended. 
 

M. Vacant Building- A vacant building is a building which is not occupied and which qualifies in use 
and zoning for consideration for tax abatement.  
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II. Projects Eligible for Tax Abatement Consideration 
 

A. New Businesses- New businesses that do not meet the definition of an existing business are not 
eligible for tax abatements for either real or personal property unless they meet the eligibility 
criteria contained in items C, D, E, F, or G below.  

 
B. Existing Businesses- A business which meets the definition of an existing business  

 may be eligible for a tax abatement of up to eight (8) years if the business activity meets  
 one or more of the items contained in the definition of Expansion above.  An existing  
 business shall be required to submit certification satisfactory to the City Assessor and the 
 Tax Abatement Review Committee of the proposed expansion and the specific   
 construction and/or personal property purchases that meet the criteria contained in the  
 definition of Expansion. 
 
 

C. Brownfield Redevelopment Areas-  A business which is proposing to locate within a  
 Brownfield redevelopment area as defined above, may be eligible for an abatement of up  
 to eight (8) years based upon the criteria for granting tax abatements contained in this  
 policy statement. 
 

D. Vacant Buildings- If a new business or an existing business proposes to operate an industrial 
facility in a building which meets the definition of a vacant building and which is included within an 
established Industrial Development District where a tax abatement is not presently in effect may 
be granted a new Industrial Facility Exemption Certificate for real property or personal property, 
as permitted by PA 198, as amended, and subject to the criteria established in this policy for up to 
eight (8) years. If qualified under PA 198, a building which meets the definition of a vacant 
building may be designated as a Speculative Building.  

 
 

E.  Transfers- A transfer of an existing Industrial Facility Exemption Certificate may be granted if a 
new business or existing business purchases or leases property which has an existing certificate 
in effect pursuant to the provisions of PA 198, as amended. If an existing certificate was issued 
for a building which qualifies as a vacant building under Section L, and is effective after 
December 31, 1995 for term of less than 12 years, then City Council may approve a request for 
an extension of the certificate for a maximum of 12 years, as provided by Section 16a., Public Act 
198, as amended, subject to the business residency requirements in Section VII of this policy.  

    

F. MEGA or Other State Assistant Projects-  A business that is within the corporate limits of the City 
of Auburn Hills either as a new business, as defined above, or as an expansion, as defined above 
and is the recipient of MEGA or other State assistance as defined above, may be granted a tax 
abatement for real property and/or personal property based upon the criteria contained in this 
policy for a period of time as established in the criteria, but not exceeding eight (8) years unless 
the company qualifies for a longer period of time under separate portions of the abatement policy.   

 
G. Restoration of Obsolete Property-  A building which meets the definition of obsolete property as 

contained in the Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts Act 198 of 1974 and is 
included within a plant rehabilitation district and which is proposed for occupancy by either a new 
business or a existing business and which will require restoration as defined in the Plant 
Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts Act 198 of 1974 may be granted a 100% tax 
abatement for up to five (5) years based upon the abatement criteria included in this policy and 
with the following considerations;  

 
A minimum planned investment in rehabilitation of real property improvements at  least 
equal to 25% of the existing true cash value of the improvements is required. 
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  The planned investment must correct functional obsolescence in addition to 

 maintenance and repairs.  
 

Personal property replacement will not be considered for abatement as part of a 
rehabilitation project. Investments in personal property by a new business or an  existing 
business during a rehabilitation project may be considered for 50% tax abatement in an 
Industrial Development District as a new facility.       

 
H.  Special Project – The City of Auburn Hills shall make available a total of five (5) abatements of 

either real or personal property (or combined abatements of both real and personal property) for 
up to twelve (12) years, provided the application for abatement meets all other abatement 
eligibility criteria contained in this policy.  These four abatements for Special Projects shall be 
available between January 1, 2010 and January 1, 2013 and may be granted at the sole 
discretion of the City Council.  The intent is that these abatements be made available for projects 
having significant economic impact on the community through the significant investment in 
buildings and equipment, the significant creation of new jobs in the community, or the long term 
commitment to the community to be made by the requesting company. Plant rehabilitation 
projects as defined in Section G may also be designated as a Special Project for abatements up 
to twelve (12) years.  

 
  

I.  Extension of an Existing IFEC Certificate- A business with an existing IFEC certificate that became 
effective after December 31, 1995 for term of less than 12 years, may submit a request to City 
Council for an extension of the certificate for a maximum of 12 years, as provided by Section 16a., 
Public Act 198, as amended, subject to the business residency requirements in Section VI of this 
policy 

 
 
J. PA 328 Exemptions- City Council may approve a 100% abatement of personal property taxes on a 
MEGA project as provided by PA 328, as amended. Projects eligible will be considered on a case by 
case basis.  The length of the abatement has no minimum or maximum requirement and the 
exemption will apply to new personal property only. 

 
 
 
   III. Abatement Criteria  
 

The following criteria are established for consideration of abatements for both real and personal property.  
The criteria are intended to be cumulative with the total abatement period not to exceed the maximum as 
outlined in the eligibility standards. 
 
 
  1.  Type of development 
 
   A.  Research and Technology                      6 years 
                B.  Manufacturing      4 years 
    
  2.  Investment in real and/or personal property 
                A.  Up to $500,000      3 years  
   B.  From $500,000 to $10,000,000    4 years 
   C.  From $10,000,000 to $100,000,000    5 years 
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   D.  In excess of $100,000,000     6 years 
                                                                     
(Note:  Investment in real and/or personal property should include buildings and ancillary facilities 
associated with the buildings but not include investments made by developers and/or the corporations 
with items such as water, sewer, streets and other off site development costs.) 
 
.  3. Site Expansion Criteria on Existing Land 
   A.   Potential expansion of 15%-25% of floor area  1 year 
   B.   Potential expansion of 26%-50% of floor area  2 years 
   C.   Potential expansion of 51% to 100%    3 years 
   D.   Potential expansion of over 100% of floor area  4 years 
 
                            

4.  Green Building (projects which meet a significant   2 years 
        number of the suggested standards in the City 
       of Auburn Hills Green Building Policy) 
 
     IV. Application Process  
 

A.   Prior to beginning any construction or purchasing any equipment for which an Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificate is being sought, the company shall prepare and file on forms supplied by 
the City a final application for a tax abatement which shall include such information as the City 
Assessor and the Tax Abatement Review Committee may deem as required to have sufficient 
information to review and make a recommendation on the final application.  The information 
required shall in all cases include as a minimum all information that is required by statute and by 
rule of the State Tax Commission for an application for tax abatement.  In addition, the applicant 
shall include an executed copy of a tax abatement agreement in a form prepared by the City and 
approved by the City attorney.  The application, the tax abatement agreement and all auxiliary 
information shall be reviewed by the City Assessor, and forwarded to the Tax Abatement Review 
Committee with any comments from the Assessor.  At an open meeting, the Tax Abatement 
Review Committee shall review the application and prepare a report and recommendation for the 
City Council as to the application including an analysis as to whether or not the application meets 
the criteria established and such other discretionary finding the Tax Abatement Review 
Committee believes are appropriate for consideration by the City Council.  The application along 
with all comments shall be forwarded to the City Council for final review and action.  The act of 
forwarding the application and all associated information to the Council shall not be presumed to 
indicate that the City Council will give approval to the application.  The City Council retains the 
right to review the final application and all supporting information and make a determination as to 
whether or not the abatement application should be approved in accordance with the adopted 
policy.  If the City Council approves the application and the tax abatement agreement, the City 
Clerk shall cause the application to be forwarded to the State Tax Commission for final review 
and action. 

 
B. There shall accompany the documentation for final approval or disapproval of the application by 

the City Council a proposed tax abatement agreement between the City and the applicant.  This 
agreement shall be in a form prepared by the City and shall outline the requirements which shall 
be met by the applicant receiving the tax abatement if the tax abatement is approved.  The 
applicant shall be bound by and shall comply with all terms of the agreement.  If the City Council 
at any time determines that the applicant is in violation of the terms of the agreement or of any 
other criteria contained in this policy or in State Law, the City Council may notify the applicant of 
its intent to hold a public hearing on a possible recommendation to the State Tax Commission 
that the abatement be revoked.   

 
C. Whenever there is a new owner or lessee, as defined in Section I.I above, of any real or personal 

property for which an industrial facilities exemption certificate has been granted, the new owner 
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or lessee shall make application for a transfer of the certificate to the new owner or lessee 
immediately, but no longer than six (6) months after a change in ownership occurs.  The City 
Council may grant requests to transfer existing certificates provided requests are consistent with 
this policy or any amendments made to this policy that is in effect at the time a request for a 
transfer is made.  An updated tax abatement development agreement shall accompany any 
request for a transfer of a certificate to a new owner or lessee. 

 
VI. Operational and Reporting Requirements 

 
The following operational and reporting requirements shall apply to all companies receiving tax 
abatements whether for real or personal property and shall be enforceable on any and all companies, 
including their successors whether included in the tax abatement agreement executed between the 
City and the company or not.  The intent of the operational and reporting requirements is to assure 
that the company fulfills its obligation to construct facilities, purchase personal property and provide 
employment opportunities as contained in the tax abatement agreement and the application and 
auxiliary information supplied to the City by the company.  The operational and reporting 
requirements also include requirements for reporting to the City any changes in employment and/or 
investment levels and to require advance notice to the City of any intent to locate any current 
business operations located within the corporate limits of the City of Auburn Hills.    

 
The applicant shall report to the City as required in the abatement agreement between the City and 
the business.  The Tax Abatement Review Committee may review said reports and forward such 
information and recommendations regarding the reports to the City Council as the Tax Abatement 
Review Committee deems appropriate. 

 
VII. Business Residency Requirements 

 
As a condition of receiving an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, or an extension of an existing 
certificate, pursuant to this policy, a company agrees to operate the facility for which the IFEC is 
granted for the term of the IFEC, plus an additional term after the date of expiration of the IFEC 
according to the following schedule: 

 
A. Tax abatement of up to eight (8) years (including extensions) = Length of the abatement plus two 

years. 
 

B. Tax abatement over eight (8) years = (including extensions) = Length of the abatement plus four 
years.  

 
The Company further understands that if it vacates or fails to operate the facility for which the IFEC is 
granted for the period of time as outlined above, that the company is liable for repayment of any 
property tax savings benefiting the Company due to the existence of the IFEC, beginning with the 
initial effective year of the IFEC. In addition, the Company will be liable for repayment of future tax 
savings if there are any remaining years in the term of the IFEC, under the provisions of Section 21(2) 
of Public Act 198, 1974 as amended.   These provisions may be waived by the City Council at the 
request of the Company for justifiable cause.  

 
VIII. Additional Requirements 
 

1. The Company further agrees to pay it’s abated real and personal property taxes timely and 
without penalty. In addition, the Company agrees to inform the City Assessor and the City 
Treasurer of any plans to relocate the company from any location within the City, 90 days prior to 
the relocation. 
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2.  The Company agrees to notify the City Assessor and City Treasurer of any change in the 
ownership of the Company’s real and personal property assets or a majority share of the 
Company’s stocks. 

 
3. The Company further agrees to abide by all other city ordinances, building and zoning codes 

during the operation of the facility.  
   

VIIII. Tax Abatement Development Agreement Enforcement 
 

i. The repayment terms outlined in Section V. above and stipulated in the standard tax abatement 
development agreement will be strictly enforced, should a holder of a certificate not fulfill the 
terms of this policy or the terms of the development agreement.   Alternative repayment terms or 
alternative repayment amounts will not be granted.   

 
ii. Should the City become aware that the terms of the development agreement have been violated; 

the City of Auburn Hills Finance Director will immediately send an invoice for taxes owed, per the 
agreement, to the owner or lessee of the facility for which abatement has been granted. 

 
iii. If necessary, the City Attorney will initiate court proceedings to enforce collection of taxes owed 

under the terms of the development agreement.  
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C I T Y  C O U N C I L  A G E N D A  
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   D E P A R T M E N T  O F  P U B L I C  S E R V I C E S  
To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Peter E. Auger, City Manager; Dave Harran, Manager of Public Utilities  

Submitted:  January 5, 2012  

Subject: Motion - Award Bid for the HURCOVAC250D Valve & Vac Maintenance System 

INTRODUCTION AND HISTORY 

On January 16, 2012, the DPS Public Utilities Division will lose an employee due to retirement. The Division has 
evaluated this pending vacancy and recommends not filling the position at this time. Instead, several Valve & Vac 
Maintenance Systems have been assessed and successfully tested in the field. Presently, valve inspections are 
performed year round by two employees. With the acquisition of the Maintenance System, the valve crew is reduced to 
one employee. Over its anticipated ten year life cycle, the system will reduce long-term operating expense while 
continuing to maintain the same level of service.  
 

The Valve & Vac Maintenance System enables an operator to perform routine valve inspections.  The maintenance 
system is equipped with a hydraulic valve exerciser and a powerful vacuum, mounted on a trailer. The vacuum 
component removes debris from the structures and has the capabilities to perform small scale hydro-excavations.   
 

 
 

Advertisements for bids for the Valve Maintenance System were placed on the MITN bid net system on December 13, 
2011. Three bids were received and are as follows:  

BIDDER LOCATION TOTAL BID AMOUNT 

Lewis Municipal Sales 651 Hawthrone, Carmel, IN 96033 $54,500.00 

Hurco Technologies 409 Enterprise St., Harrisburg, SD 57032 $55,728.00 

Shurilla & Associates 40 Lahinch Drive, Lemont, IL 60436 $56,300.00 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Based upon unit demonstrations, bid specifications, and price, the Department of Public Services recommends awarding 
the purchase of the Valve & Vac Maintenance System to Lewis Municipal Sales in the amount of $54,500.00. The system 
reduces long-term operating expense while continuing to provide the same level of service to the community. The 
purchase is not anticipated in the City’s 2012 Fleet budget, but the Fleet fund balance is adequate to carry out the 
purchase. Over a ten year period, staff anticipates the purchase will save $992,320.00 when compared to the expense of 
an employee. 

MOTION 

Move to award the purchase of the HURCOVAC250D Valve & Vac Maintenance System to Lewis 
Municipal Sales, 651 Hawthrone, Carmel, IN 96033 in the amount of $54,500.00. 

 

I CONCUR:  

 PETER E. AUGER, CITY MANAGER 
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Monthly Report –November 2011 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Part A incidents are down 4.23% compared to November of 2010.  Part B Incidents are 
up 11.25% in November comparison to one year ago. Traffic crashes show an increase 
of 3.3% in comparison to a year ago.   Traffic citations are down 27.92% total for this 
year.  Specific crimes are listed in the charts on the back page of this report.  We 
continually strategize our responses and make best use of the tools and personnel we 
have to produce the best possible outcomes.   
 
During the month of November, the Police Department as a whole had 464 hours of 
training. As noted below the largest portion was for Use of Force as the Department is 
conducting annual use of force training that includes force on force at the Crest Center, 
utilizing Simmunition equipment. The training is broken down by category:  
 
• 96 hours of Force on Force at Crest Center 
• 192 hours Controlled Force instructor re-certification training 
• 56 hours of Field Training Refresher training 
• 32 hours Communications/dispatch training  
• 32 hours of Standardized Field Sobriety Testing training 
• 40  hours of Management/Supervision training 
• 16 hours Officer Safety/Survival training 
 
The training is spread out among our entire staff with the bulk being in Use of Force.  
We are conducting our annual scenario training at the Crest Center.  Use of Force 
instructors also attended the Controlled Force re-certification training in November.  
Tactics taught in this class focus on hands on use of force and controlling combative 
persons. 
Sgt. Leonard attended Critical Supervisory Issues training, that focuses on critical 
issues/decisions that supervisors are faced with in law enforcement today.  PSO 
Borowski attended Active Shooter Call Taking Techniques and Crimes In-Progress 
Dispatch training.   
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     TECHNICAL SERVICES DIVISION 

  
Parking Violations 
 
Officers from Auburn Hills issued 5 parking violations, totaling $160.00 in 
fines, during the November.  Oakland Community College Officers issued 

13 citations totaling $260.00 in fines. 
 
35 Sex Offenders were verified during in the month of October.  
 
Blue Card Survey 
 
 In an effort to gauge the services our personnel have provided, the Department sends 
out 100 survey cards to citizens with whom we have had contact during the previous 
month.  This post card size survey, commonly referred to as a “Blue Card” for its color, 
asks six questions about the quality of service the citizen received.  During the month of 
November we received 23 cards back, none of which expressed dissatisfaction with the 
service provided.     
 
The “blue cards” also provide a space for the respondents to make comments about the 
service they received.  The following are some of the comments from the blue cards: 
 

“Thank you for your time, it is much appreciated.”  Officer Mahon 
“The officer spent over ½ hour walking the neighborhood in the rain looking for 
my grandson’s bike that was stolen.  He did not find it, but was concerned and a 
compassionate officer.”- Officer VanLandeghem 
“Officer was very much professional and respectful.” Officer Eftink 
 “Tell the officers thank you.”  Officer Malone 
 “Very courteous” Officer Sparre 
 “I was amazed, very pleased, and impressed when I was given the Crime 
Victim’s Rights information.”  Officer Eftink 
 

Firearms Registration 
 
Auburn Hills’ Records clerks issued 43 License to Purchase gun permits.   
 
Fingerprinting 
 
During the month of November, Records personnel fingerprinted 8 people; 3 for 
employment, 2 for medical license, 1 for immigration, 1 for out of state, and 1 for new 
business owner in Auburn Hills. 
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Communications  

 
Communications is the primary contact point for incoming calls to the Department. The  
following statistics show how many calls were handled by our Police Service Officers  
during the month of November 2011:  
 
Days      2,925 
Noon’s   2,926 
Mids       1,118 
 
Total incoming calls: 5,452 
 
Total outgoing calls:  1,517 
 
Total calls:                  6,969 
 
 Of the 5,452 total phone calls received by Communications, 32 % or 1,745 calls were  
received on 911 lines.  
 
 Communications Dispatched: 
 
  2,218  Police Incidents    
 
  151 EMS Incidents 
 
  129 Fire Incidents 
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OPERATIONS DIVISION 
 
NOTEWORTHY CASES 
 

On November 13, 2011 midnight shift officers responded to assist Bloomfield Twp. officers 
in the area of I-75 and South Blvd.  An officer had pulled up behind a Dodge Caravan 
parked on the shoulder to check on two people inside the car.  When the officer stopped 
the two young males ran from the vehicle into a large wooded area near Square Lake Rd.  
Auburn Hills officers assisted with trying to locate the males and investigating the 
ownership of the vehicle.  It was determined that the vehicle belonged to a woman on 
Parklawn Rd. in Auburn Hills and had been stolen sometime during the night.  The two 
juveniles from Detroit were located on foot in the area of Square Lake Rd. and Squirrel Rd.  
The juveniles were covered in mud and had property in their pockets that belonged to the 
car.  Both were arrested by Auburn Hills officers and charged with unlawful driving away of 
an automobile. 
 
On November 26, 2011 at 4:00 am, Officer DiTomaso was dispatched to Friday’s 
restaurant on N. Squirrel Rd. for a burglary alarm.  Once he arrived, he did not see any 
vehicles in the parking lot and no obvious signs of a break-in.  He began checking the 
building on foot and located a person trying to hide behind a locked exterior storage area.  
While interviewing the man, another person was located inside the locked area.  Officer 
DiTomaso investigated the incident with the assistance of Officer Skomski.  Evidence of a 
burglary and burglary tools were located at the business.  It was determined that the 48 
year old and 43 year old Auburn Hills residents had jumped a locked gate and broke into an 
exterior storage shed to try and steal returnable bottles/cans.  Both were arrested and 
charged by the prosecutor with burglary to a business and possession of burglary tools. 
 
On November 30, 2011 at 4:20 pm, Ofc. Janczarek, Eftink and Rice responded to Genisys 
Credit Union for a fraud complaint.  Upon arrival the officers found four subjects, two of 
which were actively engaged in defrauding the credit union out of $30,000.00.  The officers 
were able to investigate the fraud and took two of the subjects into custody.  The case was 
turned over to the detective bureau for follow up with the Oakland County Prosecutor’s 
Office.    
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DISTRICT IV / RETAIL DISTRICT  
 

          
 

On November 9, 2011 Officer Rometty responded to Marshall’s inside Great Lakes Crossing 
Mall. The Loss Prevention Officer advised Officer Rometty that he had one employee and a 
customer in-custody for Embezzlement.  The two conspired on a previous day that while the 
suspect employee was working that the suspect customer would come into the store select 
merchandise from the store then go through the suspect employee’s check-out line.  The 
suspect employee would scan one low cost item then bag the items without scanning them into 
the register. The suspect customer would pay for the low cost item and leave the store with the 
bag of merchandise.  Both suspects confessed to the plan after they were arrested.  Both were 
issued citations for Retail Fraud 3 and released.  

 
November brings the start of the holiday shopping season with the day after Thanksgiving being 
called Black Friday. Retailers this year pushed the start of Black Friday to Thursday 
(Thanksgiving) night.  Great Lakes Crossings Outlet Mall opened at 9:00pm with the majority of 
the retailers inside the mall opening.  Sergeant McDonnell worked with the DPU Officers and 
District IV officers to develop a plan to tackle the 25 hours of retail frenzy. This plan used 
officers from each shift during the 25 hours of shopping. Officers coordinated and altered their 
scheduled work times to ensure that there was coverage at the mall as well as the surrounding 
retailers. Officers handled 29 calls for service in and around the retail shopping district, which 
included retails fraud arrests, trespassing arrests, assault and battery, larcenies, customer 
troubles, and vehicle crashes. 

 
The flurry of holiday shopping continued through Saturday and Sunday of the weekend also, no 
major incidents were reported in the Retail District.  Sergeant McDonnell and her team of 
officers did an outstanding job of partnering with GLC mall security and major retailers to insure 
people had a safe shopping experience.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Officers Open 
Cases 

Warrant 
Approved 

Warrant 
Denied Petitions Tickets Arrests Assigned 

 Closed 
Officer Rometty 8 0 0 3 1 11 0 

Officer Mahon 6 5 1 6 4 14 1 

Officer Brown 9 0 0 0 0 7 0 

Total 23 5 1 9 5 32 1 
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Directed Patrol  
 

Officers from Directed Patrol conducted Tobacco Stings on November 8, 2011.  The 
Department contracted three 16 year old students from Avondale High School to be decoys.  
The decoys then were taken to establishments in the City that sell tobacco products. The 
decoys went into each establishment and attempted to purchase cigarettes/tobacco product(s). 
If the establishment sold the tobacco product to them the officer would identify themselves and 
issue a citation to the clerk.  If the clerk did not sell the tobacco item to the decoy the officers 
identified themselves and congratulated them on a job well done.  The following establishments 
were violated: Happy Hour- on Auburn Road, News Stand- inside GLC, BP Gas Station-on 
Lapeer and the Mobile Gas Station on Baldwin. Citations were issued to the Clerks and 
forwarded to the court.  The Oakland County Health Department was also given notice of the 
violations and non-violations. 

 
The Officers from Directed Patrol conducted the second annual Liquor Control Sting for 2011.  
We mailed notices that the sting was going to be conducted within 45 days. The officers then 
interviewed and contracted a criminal justice student from Oakland Community College’s 
Criminal Justice program.  The decoy was provided with cash and used his Michigan Drivers 
License that states that he is under 21 years old.  The officers then took the under 21 decoy to 
each liquor establishment, both retailers and restaurants within the City. If the establishment did 
not sell alcohol to the minor the officer would identify themselves and congratulate the clerk.  If 
the sale of the alcohol was completed the officer would identify themselves and issue the clerk 
a misdemeanor citation for sale of alcohol to a minor. Following the detail the officers complete 
the reports and Liquor Control Commission violation paperwork.  It will be approximately 90 
days for the Liquor Control Commission hearings.  The following locations were violated:  Chili’s 
on Baldwin, Miyako Steak House inside GLC, Maxx & Erma’s on Baldwin and TGI-Fridays on 
Squirrel. 

 
Officer Prachar attended 24 hours of Standardized Field Sobriety testing train the trainer 
training. Officer Prachar is now a certified instructor in SFST’s.  Officer Prachar will be working 
on training Department members in the methods of SFST, as well as refresher training for 
department members.  

 
Officer Brian Miller and Sergeant Jill McDonnell attended a training class titled “BELOW 100”.  
The training was about reducing deaths of law enforcement officers to BELOW 100 annually.  It 
has been over 55 years since law enforcement deaths were less than 100 annually.   The 
premise of the training and program is that law enforcement officers can reduce their own 
deaths by focusing on what they have control over that contributes to law enforcement deaths.  
The five covenants of Below 100 are: Wear your Safety Belt, Wear your bullet resistant vest, 
Watch your speed while driving, focus on the WIN principal: What’s Important Now!, and 
Complacency Kills.  By doing the first three of these covenants nationally law enforcement can 
easily reduce their own deaths to fewer than 100 annually. This is a campaign that we will be 
rolling out in 2012. 
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Investigations  
 

Investigator Active 
Cases 
Start of 
Month 

Open 
Cases     

Assigned 

Warrants 
Felony/ 

Misdemeanor 

In 
Custody 
Warrants 

Juvenile 
Petition 

Youth   
Assistance 

Pros. 
Denied 

Investigated 
and Closed 

Active 
Cases 
End of 
Month 

Edwards 10 10 3*/0 3* 2* 0 1 1 13 

Damiani 9 13 1/0 2 0 0 1 10 8 

Thomas 13 15 1/1 1 4 0 2 4 15 

Martin 4 19 1/0 0 0 0 5 1 18 

 
COURT SERVICES  

 
Warrant request sent to Oakland County Prosecutor’s Office:   8   
Warrant request sent to City Attorney:      3   
Warrant request denied by Oakland County Prosecutor’s Office:  5 
Warrant request denied by City Attorney:       2  
In-Custody warrant requests sent to Oakland County Prosecutor’s Office: 12 
Subpoenas Served:     94   
DNA Collected from convicted felons:   3     
Prisoners seen at court:     34       
Warrants entered in LIEN:    31      
Cases investigated and closed:    20       
Warrants sworn to:      15   

 
School Resource Officer  

 
On November 2nd, officers worked the Division 2 Semi-Final boys’ soccer game at the Avondale 
High School.  The Avondale High School boys’ soccer team beat Bloomfield Hills Andover 2-1 
to advance to the state championship game.  On November 5th, the Avondale High School 
boys’ soccer team beat Spring Lake 2-1 winning the Division 2 state championship.   

 
On November 11th, Officer Stubbs met with a student, his mother, and his teacher regarding his 
interest in a career in law enforcement.  The student and parent were provided with information 
on the requirements to become a police officer in the state of Michigan.   

 
On November 14th, Officer Stubbs conducted a code red lock-down drill at the Avondale 
Montessori Pre-School.  After the completion of the lock-down drill, Officer Stubbs reminded the 
students the importance of being quiet during the drill.   
 
On November 17th, Officer Stubbs and Officer Dave Miller conducted a code red lock-down drill 
at the Avondale Administration Building and Auburn Elementary School.  After the completion of 
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the lock-down drill, officers went over their observations with the school’s administration.  The 
officers involved in the lock-down drill did not observe any areas of concern during the drill.  
Working with the schools during lock down drills helps insure students and staff know what their 
responsibilities are during an emergency.  This assists responding police and fire personnel in 
quickly assessing any threats and taking actions to secure an emergency scene.          

 
On November 17th, Officer Stubbs attended the Youth Dialogue day put on by the 
Rochester/Auburn Hills Community Coalition.  The event was held at Meadows Elementary 
School in Rochester Hills and was attended by students from area high schools.  The topic at 
this year’s Youth Dialogue focused on leadership.  Students had the opportunity to identify both 
the leadership skills they use in everyday life and the skills they need to develop to become a 
more effective leader in their community, school, and families.  The students were also given 
the opportunity to present their ideas on how to make the surrounding communities better.      

 
Officer Stubbs meets with numerous parents and students each month.  He assists them by 
providing advice about student behavior, answers questions related to law enforcement, and 
provides families with additional resources when needed. 

 
Officer Stubbs continued to work with the hall monitors at the Avondale High School on 
identifying the areas and times certain parts of the school need to be monitored.  
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Murder 
Forcible Sexual Offenses 

Robbery 
Assault Offenses 

Burglary 
Larceny 

Motor Vehicle Thefts 
Arson 

Kidnapping / Abduction 
Forgery / Counterfeiting  

Fraud 
Embezzlement  … 
Stolen Property 

Damage to Property 
Weapon Offenses 

Drugs / Narcotic … 

Part A Incidents 

2010 2011 

PART A INCIDENTS 

  
2011 
Nov. 

2010 
Nov. 2011 2010 Y.T.D. %  change 

INCIDENT TYPE     Y.T.D.  Y.T.D. 2011/2010 
Murder 0 0 1 1 0.00% 
Forcible Sexual Offenses 6 4 31 26 19.23% 
Robbery 1 3 18 24 -25.00% 
Assault Offenses 35 38 382 350 9.14% 
Burglary 6 9 86 127 -32.28% 
Larceny 54 52 643 678 -5.16% 
Motor Vehicle Thefts 2 1 39 41 -4.88% 
Arson 1 0 5 3 66.67% 
Kidnapping / Abduction 0 1 0 2 -200.00% 
Forgery / Counterfeiting  2 0 19 17 11.76% 
Fraud 10 16 143 125 14.40% 
Embezzlement  Bribery / Extortion 3 0 12 25 -52.00% 
Stolen Property 0 1 8 9 -11.11% 
Damage to Property 21 11 134 167 -19.76% 
Weapon Offenses 0 2 14 31 -54.84% 
Drugs / Narcotic Violations 11 10 165 149 10.74% 

TOTAL PART "A" INCIDENTS 152 148 1700 1775 -4.23% 
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PART B INCIDENTS 
  2011 Nov. 2010 Nov. 2011 2010 Y.T.D % change 

INCIDENT TYPE     
 

Y.T.D 
 

Y.T.D 2011/2010 
Fraud - Bad Checks 2 0 14 20 -30.00% 
Non-Forcible Sexual Offenses 3 1 6 3 100.00% 
Nonviolent Family Offenses 3 2 13 24 -45.83% 
O.U.I.L or O.U.I.N 19 24 197 230 -14.35% 
Liquor Law Violations 14 7 111 114 -2.63% 
Obstruction of Justice or Escape 25 5 212 57 271.93% 
Disorderly  Conduct / Vagrancy 11 10 65 96 -32.29% 
State or Local Offenses 13 8 68 57 19.30% 
State / Federal Offenses 2 2 18 18 0.00% 
Local Ordinances - Generic 1 0 11 13 -15.38% 
Juvenile Vagrancy 1 0 5 13 -61.54% 
Traffic Offenses 0 0 2 4 -50.00% 

TOTAL PART "B" INCIDENTS 94 59 722 649 11.25% 
 

 
 

 
 

Fraud - Bad Checks 

Non-Forcible Sexual … 

Nonviolent Family … 

O.U.I.L or O.U.I.N 

Liquor Law Violations 

Obstruction of Justice … 

Disorderly  Conduct / … 

State or Local Offenses 

State / Federal Offenses 

Local Ordinances - … 

Juvenile Vagrancy 

Traffic Offenses 

Part B Incidents 

2010 2011 
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CRASH AND CITATIONS\  
 
    

Current 2010 Y.T.D. % 

 

Nov. 
11 

Nov. 
10 Y.T.D. Y.T.D. Change 

Crashes 144 118 1282 1241 3.30% 
Traffic Citations 325 441 4146 5752 -27.92% 
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